
          

 

 

VERANDA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

CITY OF PORT ST. LUCIE 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JUNE 13, 2022 

10:30 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.verandacdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Veranda Clubhouse 

238 SE Courances Drive 
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
June 13, 2022 

10:30 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish a Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda. 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………………..Page 2 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………..Page 4 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget…………...Page 5 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Assessment Roll…….....Page 14 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule……...Page 27 

2. Consider Approval of Retention and Fee Agreement with Kutak Rock LLP……………………..Page 29 

J. Administrative Matters 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 14, 2022 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Veranda Community Development District for March 14, 2022 was 
called to order at 10:30 a.m. in the Veranda Clubhouse at 238 SE Courances Drive, Port St. Lucie, Florida 
34984. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the St. Lucie News Tribune on October 01, 2021, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of Supervisors David Kanarek, Eliot Goldstein, and Garrett 
Dinsmore constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Also in attendance were District Managers Michael McElligott of Special District Services, Inc., and 
District Attorney Johnathon Johnson from Hopping, Green & Sams, P.A. who attended by phone.  
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  1.  November 9, 2020, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing 
 
The October 11, 2021, Regular Board Meeting Minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Dinsmore, seconded by Mr. Goldstein to approve the October 11, 2021, 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes, as presented. That motion passed 3-0. 
 
G.  OLD BUSINESS 
 
There was no old business.  
 
H.  NEW BUSINESS 
  1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget 

Page 2



VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 14, 2022 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Mr. McElligott presented Resolution No. 2022-01, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE VERANDA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR YEAR 2022/2023; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After some discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Dinsmore, seconded by Mr. Kanarek to adopt 
Resolution No. 2022-01, as presented, and set the Public Hearing date and time for June 13, 2022 at 
10:30 am. The motion passed 3-0. 
 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Mr. McElligott reminded the Board that this year will be the first year that some of the Board seats go 
to general election. Mr. McElligott informed the Board of the qualifying period in June for those 2 
seats. Mr. McElligott also announced the last landowners meeting which will be held this November. 
There was no action for the Board to take.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Dinsmore, 
seconded by Mr. Maxey and passed unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 10:46 am.   
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary     Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 3



��������������	
 ������������������������������	����������

������������ ���������������������! ���

"#$%&''()&*+$�,*-#%&$./0123456�27�.8533�9:/87;1�:7�<;=�>?@�>A>>BCDEFGCHI762;7�J2K58�L:/7M=@�N1:826;OCFGDP�QPRFSTJUVWU�LX<<YVIZ[�WTST\X.<TVZ�WI]ZJILZ�VXZILT�XN�.Ŷ\IL�_TUJIV̀ �ZX�LXV]IWTJ�Z_T�UWX.ZIXV�XN�Z_TNI]LU\�[TUJ�>A>>a>A>b�̂YẀ TZ�UVW�VXZILT�XN�JT̀Y\UJ�̂XUJW�XN�]Y.TJSI]XJ]c�<TTZIV̀ d�Z45�̂:;86�:e�]/f58K23:83:e�M45�S58;76;�L:gg/72M=�W5K51:fg57M�W23M82hM�i211�4:16�;�f/012h�45;827j�:7�9/75�kb@�>A>>@�;M�kAlbA�;dgd�;M�M45�S58;76;L1/04:/35�1:h;M56�;M�>bm�]T�L:/8;7h53�W82K5@�.:8M�]Md�\/h25@�N1:826;�b?nm?�e:8�M45�f/8f:35�:e�45;827j�h:gg57M3�;76:0o5hM2:73�:7�M45�;6:fM2:7�:e�M45�0/6j5M�:e�M45�W23M82hM�e:8�N23h;1�[5;8�>A>>a>A>bd�U�85j/1;8�0:;86�g55M27j�:e�M45�W23M82hMi211�;13:�05�4516�;M�M4;M�M2g5�i4585�M45�̂:;86�g;=�h:732658�;7=�:M458�0/327533�M4;M�g;=�f8:f581=�h:g5�05e:85�2Md�U�h:f=�:eM45�;j576;�;76�0/6j5M�g;=�05�:0M;2756�e8:g�M45�W23M82hMc3�i5032M5�piiidK58;76;h66d:8jq�:8�;M�M45�:ee2h53�:e�M45�W23M82hM<;7;j58@�>rAkU�̂/873�J:;6@�.;1g�̂5;h4�̀;86573@�N1:826;�bb?kA@�Z515f4:75l�prskq�sbAt?n>>�;76a:8�M:11�e855�;M�ktmuutubut?n>>@�6/827j�7:8g;1�0/327533�4:/83d�Z45�f/012h�45;827j�;76�g55M27j�;85�:f57�M:�M45�f/012h�;76�i211�05�h:76/hM56�27;hh:86;7h5�i2M4�M45�f8:K232:73�:e�N1:826;�1;i�e:8�h:gg/72M=�65K51:fg57M�623M82hM3d�Z45�f/012h�45;827j�;76�g55M27j�g;=�05h:7M27/56�M:�;�6;M5@�M2g5@�;76�f1;h5�M:�05�3f5h2e256�:7�M45�85h:86�;M�M45�g55M27jd�Z4585�g;=�05�:hh;32:73�i457�3M;ee�:8]/f58K23:83�g;=�f;8M2h2f;M5�0=�3f5;v58�M515f4:75d�U7=�f583:7�85w/2827j�3f5h2;1�;hh:gg:6;M2:73�;M�M423�g55M27j�05h;/35�:e;�623;0212M=�:8�f4=32h;1�2gf;28g57M�34:/16�h:7M;hM�M45�W23M82hM�Xee2h5�;M�prskq�sbAt?n>>�;M�15;3M�e:8M=t52j4M�p?mq�4:/83�f82:8�M:M45�g55M27jd�Ie�=:/�;85�45;827j�:8�3f55h4�2gf;2856@�f15;35�h:7M;hM�M45�N1:826;�J51;=�]58K2h5�;M�ktmAAtnrrtmuuA@�e:8�;26�27h:7M;hM27j�M45�W23M82hM�Xee2h5d�T;h4�f583:7�i4:�65h2653�M:�;ff5;1�;7=�65h232:7�g;65�0=�M45�̂:;86�i2M4�853f5hM�M:�;7=g;MM58�h:73265856�;M�M45�f/012h�45;827j3�:8�g55M27j�23�;6K2356�M4;M�f583:7�i211�7556�;�85h:86�:e�f8:h55627j3�;76�M4;M;hh:8627j1=@�M45�f583:7�g;=�7556�M:�573/85�M4;M�;�K580;M2g�85h:86�:e�M45�f8:h55627j3�23�g;65@�27h1/627j�M45�M53M2g:7=�;765K2657h5�/f:7�i42h4�3/h4�;ff5;1�23�M:�05�0;356d�<55M27j3�g;=�05�h;7h51156�e8:g�M2g5�M:�M2g5�i2M4:/M�;6K58M2356�7:M2h5d<2h4;51�<hT112j:MM�W23M82hM�<;7;j58�STJUVWU�LX<<YVIZ[�WTST\X.<TVZ�WI]ZJILZ�iiidK58;76;h66d:8j�./01234l�<;=>?@�bk@�>A>>�ZLVr>srmm?

Page 4



RESOLUTION 2022-02 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE VERANDA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING 
TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGET 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2022, AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2022, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) proposed budget for the next ensuing budget 
year along with an explanatory and complete financial plan for each fund of the District, 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the proposed annual budget 
(“Proposed Budget”), the District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing 
authorities having jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set June 13, 2022, as the date for a public hearing thereon and 
caused notice of such public hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 
190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website 
at least two days before the public hearing (or if the District does not yet have its own website, 
the District Manager timely transmitted the Proposed Budget to the managers or administrators 
of St. Lucie County for posting on their websites); and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the District Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a 
budget for the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems 
necessary to defray all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, 
including reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during 
the fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the District Manager’s Proposed Budget, 
a copy of which is on file with the office of the District Manager and at the 

Page 5



District’s Records Office, and hereby approves certain amendments thereto, as 
shown in Section 2 below. 

 
b.  The District Manager’s Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as 

amended by the Board, is hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, and incorporated herein by reference; 
provided, however, that the comparative figures contained in the adopted budget 
may be subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to 
reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The adopted budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Records Office and identified as “The Budget for 
the Veranda Community Development District for the Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2023,” as adopted by the Board of Supervisors on June 13, 2022.   

 
d. The final adopted budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption.  If the District does not yet 
have its own website, the District Manager is directed to transmit the final 
adopted budget to the managers or administrators of St. Lucie County for posting 
on their websites. 

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the Veranda Community 
Development District, for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2022, and ending September 30, 
2023, the sum of $387,007 to be raised by the levy of assessments and otherwise, which sum is 
deemed by the Board of Supervisors to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District 
during said budget year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $ 86,833    
 

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND   $ 300,174   
 
TOTAL ALL FUNDS    $ 387,007   

  
 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within the fiscal 
year or within 60 days following the end of the fiscal year may amend its budget for that fiscal 
year as follows: 
 

a. The Board may authorize an increase or decrease in line item appropriations 
within a fund by motion recorded in the minutes if the total appropriations of the 
fund do not increase. 

 

Page 6



b. The District Manager or Treasurer may authorize an increase or decrease in line 
item appropriations within a fund if the total appropriations of the fund do not 
increase and if the aggregate change in the original appropriation item does not 
exceed $10,000 or 10% of the original appropriation. 

 
c. By resolution, the Board may increase any appropriation item and/or fund to 

reflect receipt of any additional unbudgeted monies and make the corresponding 
change to appropriations or the unappropriated balance. 

 
d. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
 The District Manager or Treasurer must establish administrative procedures to ensure that 
any budget amendments are in compliance with this Section 3 and Section 189.016 of the Florida 
Statutes, among other applicable laws.  Among other procedures, the District Manager or 
Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to budget(s) under subparagraphs c. and d. above are 
posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption.  If the District does not yet have its 
own website, the District's Secretary is directed to transmit such amendments to the managers or 
administrators of St. Lucie County for posting on their websites. 
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 13TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022.  
 
ATTEST:      VERANDA COMMUNITY 

 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
       By:       
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
 
Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget 

Page 7



   Veranda
  Community Development District

      Final Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2022/2023

         October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



RESOLUTION 2022‐03 
 

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  SUPERVISORS  OF  THE 
VERANDA  COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT  DISTRICT  MAKING  A 
DETERMINATION  OF  BENEFIT  AND  IMPOSING  SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; PROVIDING FOR THE 
COLLECTION  AND  ENFORCEMENT  OF  SPECIAL  ASSESSMENTS;  
CERTIFYING  AN  ASSESSMENT  ROLL;  PROVIDING  FOR 
AMENDMENTS  TO  THE  ASSESSMENT  ROLL;  PROVIDING  A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
  WHEREAS,  the Veranda Community Development District  (“District”)  is a  local unit of 
special‐purpose  government  established  pursuant  to  Chapter  190,  Florida  Statutes,  for  the 
purpose  of  providing,  operating  and maintaining  infrastructure  improvements,  facilities  and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District is located in St. Lucie County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the  Board  of  Supervisors  (“Board”)  of  the District    hereby  determines  to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described  in  the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 
30,  2023  (“Fiscal  Year  2022/2023”),  attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  “A”  and  incorporated  by 
reference herein; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the District must obtain  sufficient  funds  to provide  for  the operation  and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may  impose special 
assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments  for operations and maintenance  in  the amount  set  forth  in  the Adopted 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously  levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2022/2023; and 

Page 14



 
  WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special  assessments may  be  placed  on  the  tax  roll  and  collected  by  the  local  tax  collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  it  is  in the best  interests of the District to adopt the Assessment Roll of the 
Veranda Community Development District  (“Assessment Roll”) attached  to  this Resolution as 
Exhibit “B” and incorporated as a material part of this Resolution by this reference, and to certify 
the Assessment Roll to the County Tax Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  it  is  in  the best  interests of  the District  to permit  the District Manager  to 
amend  the Assessment Roll,  certified  to  the County  Tax Collector  by  this Resolution,  as  the 
Property Appraiser updates  the property  roll  for  the County,  for  such  time as  authorized by 
Florida law. 
 

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY  THE  BOARD  OF 
SUPERVISORS  OF  THE  VERANDA  COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
  SECTION 1.  BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and determines that 
the provision of  the  services,  facilities,  and operations  as described  in  Exhibit  “A”  confers  a 
special and peculiar benefit to the lands within the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the 
cost of the assessments. The allocation of the assessments to the specially benefitted lands, as 
shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” is hereby found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
  SECTION 2.  ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapters 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, 
and  using  the  procedures  authorized  by  Florida  law  for  the  levy  and  collection  of  special 
assessments, a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied 
on benefitted lands within the District, and in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.”  The lien of 
the special assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution 
shall be effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), 
Florida  Statutes,  the  lien  amount  shall  serve  as  the  “maximum  rate”  authorized  by  law  for 
operation and maintenance assessments. 
 
  SECTION 3.  COLLECTION.    The  collection  of  the  operation  and  maintenance  special 
assessments and previously levied debt service assessments shall be at the same time and in the 
same manner as County taxes in accordance with the Uniform Method, as indicated on Exhibits 
“A” and “B.”  The decision to collect special assessments by any particular method – e.g., on the 
tax  roll  or  by  direct  bill  –  does  not mean  that  such method will  be  used  to  collect  special 
assessments  in  future years, and  the District  reserves  the  right  in  its sole discretion  to select 
collection methods in any given year, regardless of past practices.   
 

Page 15



  SECTION 4.  ASSESSMENT  ROLL.    The  Assessment  Roll,  attached  to  this  Resolution  as 
Exhibit “B,” is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the County 
Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The proceeds therefrom shall be 
paid to the District. 
 
  SECTION 5.  ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep apprised of 
all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date of this 
Resolution, and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for such 
time as authorized by Florida  law,  to  the County property  roll.   After any amendment of  the 
Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 
  SECTION 6.   SEVERABILITY.    The  invalidity  or  unenforceability  of  any  one  or  more 
provisions  of  this  Resolution  shall  not  affect  the  validity  or  enforceability  of  the  remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
  SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.    This Resolution  shall  take  effect  upon  the  passage  and 
adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of June, 2022. 
 
ATTEST:            VERANDA COMMUNITY 
              DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  By:___________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary       
              Its:____________________________ 
 
 
Exhibit A:   Budget  
Exhibit B:   Assessment Roll  
 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Veranda Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2022/2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ST. LUCIE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 13th day of June, 2022. 

 

 
ATTEST: VERANDA 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 27



 
 

VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Veranda Community 
Development District will hold Regular Board Meetings in the Veranda Clubhouse located at 238 
SE Courances Drive, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 at 10:30 a.m. on the following dates: 
 

October 10, 2022 
November 14, 2022 
December 12, 2022 

January 9, 2023 
February 13, 2023 

March 13, 2023 
April 10, 2023* 

May 8, 2023 
June 12, 2023 
July 10, 2023 

August 14, 2023 
September 11, 2023 

 
*Easter Monday 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  Meetings are 
open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  Copies 
of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by contacting 
the District Manager at 561-630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the date of the 
particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or two Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the 
discussions taking place.  Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time and place 
specified on the record.  
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at 561-630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to 
the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
VERANDA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.verandacdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  ST. LUCIE NEWS TRIBUNE    10/01/22 
 

Page 28



1

RETENTION AND FEE AGREEMENT

I. PARTIES

THIS RETENTION AND FEE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 
by and between the following parties:

A. Veranda Community Development District (“Client”)
c/o Special District Services, Inc
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410

and

B. Kutak Rock LLP (“Kutak Rock”)
P.O. Box 10230
Tallahassee, Florida 32302

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES

In consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreements contained herein, the parties 
agree as follows:

A. The Client agrees to employ and retain Kutak Rock as its attorney and legal 
representative for general advice, counseling and representation of Client and its
Board of Supervisors.

B. Kutak Rock accepts such employment and agrees to serve as attorney for and
provide legal representation to the Client in connection with those matters 
referenced above.  No other legal representation is contemplated by this Agreement. 
Any additional legal services to be provided under the terms of this Agreement shall 
be agreed to by Client and Kutak Rock in writing. Unless set forth in a separate 
agreement to which Client consents in writing, Kutak Rock does not represent 
individual members of the Client’s Board of Supervisors.  

III. CLIENT FILES

The files and work product materials (“Client File”) of the Client generated or received by 
Kutak Rock will be maintained confidentially to the extent permitted by law and in accordance 
with the Florida Bar rules.  At the conclusion of the representation, the Client File will be stored 
by Kutak Rock for a minimum of five (5) years.  After the five (5) year storage period, the Client 
hereby acknowledges and consents that Kutak Rock may confidentially destroy or shred the 
Client File. Notwithstanding the prior sentence, if the Client provides Kutak Rock with a written 
request for the return of the Client File before the end of the five (5) year storage period, then 
Kutak Rock will return the Client File to Client at Client’s expense.

Page 29



2

IV. FEES

A. The Client agrees to compensate Kutak Rock for services rendered in connection 
with any matters covered by this Agreement on an hourly rate basis plus actual 
expenses incurred by Kutak Rock in accordance with the attached Expense
Reimbursement Policy (Attachment A, incorporated herein by reference).  Time 
will be billed in increments of one-tenth (1/10) of an hour. Certain work related to 
issuance of bonds and bond anticipation notes may be performed under a flat fee to 
be separately established prior to or at the time of bond or note issuance.

B. Attorneys and staff, if applicable, who perform work for Client will be billed at 
their regular hourly rates, as may be adjusted from time to time.  The regular hourly 
rates of those initially expected to handle the bulk of Client’s work are as follows: 

Jonathan T. Johnson $415
Associates $250 - $275
Paralegals $145

Kutak Rock’s regular hourly billing rates are reevaluated annually and are subject 
to change not more than once in a calendar year. Client agrees to Kutak Rock’s
annual rate increases to the extent hourly rates are not increased beyond $15/hour.

C. To the extent practicable and consistent with the requirements of sound legal 
representation, Kutak Rock will attempt to reduce Client’s bills by assigning each 
task to the person best able to perform it at the lowest rate, so long as he or she has 
the requisite knowledge and experience. 

D. Upon consent of Client, Kutak Rock may subcontract for legal services in the event 
that Client requires legal services for which Kutak Rock does not have adequate 
capabilities.   

E. Kutak Rock will include costs and expenses (including interest charges on past due 
statements) on its billing statements for Client reimbursement in accordance with 
the attached Expense Reimbursement Policy.

V. BILLING AND PAYMENT

The Client agrees to pay Kutak Rock’s monthly billings for fees and expenses incurred 
within thirty (30) days following receipt of an invoice, or the time permitted by Florida law, 
whichever is greater.  Kutak Rock shall not be obligated to perform further legal services under 
this Agreement if any such billing statement remains unpaid longer than thirty (30) days after 
submittal to and receipt by Client.  Non-payment of billing statements shall be a basis for Kutak 
Rock to immediately withdraw from the representation without regard to remaining actions 
necessitating attention by Kutak Rock as part of the representation.

Page 30



3

VI. DEFAULT; VENUE

In any legal proceeding to collect outstanding balances due under this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to costs and 
outstanding balances due under this Agreement. Venue of any such action shall be exclusive in the 
state courts of the Second Judicial Circuit in and for Leon County, Florida.  

VII. CONFLICTS

It is important to disclose that Kutak Rock represents a number of special districts, trustees 
(“Trustees”), bondholders, developers, builders, and other entities throughout Florida and the 
United States of America relating to community development districts, special districts, local 
governments and land development. Kutak Rock or its attorneys may also have represented the
entity which petitioned for the formation of the Client.  Kutak Rock understands that Client may 
enter into an agreement with a Trustee in connection with the issuance of bonds, and that Client 
may request that Kutak Rock simultaneously represent Client in connection with the issuance of 
bonds, while Kutak Rock is also representing such Trustee on unrelated matters.  By accepting this 
Agreement Client agrees that (1) Client was provided with an explanation of the implications of 
the common representation(s) and the advantages and risks involved; (2) Kutak Rock will be able 
to provide competent and diligent representation of Client, regardless of Kutak Rock’s other 
representations, and (3) there is not a substantial risk that Kutak Rock’s representation of Client 
would be materially limited by Kutak Rock’s responsibilities to another client, a former client or 
a third person or by a personal interest.  Acceptance of this Agreement will constitute Client’s
waiver of any “conflict” with Kutak Rock’s representation of various special districts, Trustees, 
bondholders, developers, builders, and other entities relating to community development districts, 
special districts, local governments and land development.  

VIII. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Client acknowledges that the Kutak Rock cannot make any promises to Client as to the 
outcome of any legal dispute or guarantee that Client will prevail in any legal dispute.

IX. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this Agreement upon providing prior written notice to the other 
party at its regular place of business.  All fees due and payable in accordance with this Agreement 
shall accrue and become payable pursuant to the terms of this Agreement through the date of 
termination.

X. EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be deemed fully executed upon its signing by Kutak Rock and the 
Client. The contract formed between Kutak Rock and the Client shall be the operational contract 
between the parties.

Page 31



4

XI. ENTIRE CONTRACT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

Accepted and Agreed to:

VERANDA COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:________________________

Its:________________________  

Date:______________________

KUTAK ROCK LLP

By:__________________________

Its: __________________________

Date:_________________________

Page 32



5

ATTACHMENT A

KUTAK ROCK LLP
CDD EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY

The following is Kutak Rock’s expense reimbursement policy for community development 
district representation.  This policy applies unless a different arrangement has been negotiated 
based on the unique circumstances of a particular client or matter.

All expenses are billed monthly. Billings ordinarily reflect expenses for the most recent 
month, except where there are delays in receiving bills from third party vendors.

Photocopying and Printing.  In-house photocopying and printing are charged at $0.25 per 
page (black & white) and $0.50 per page (color). Outside copying is billed as a pass-through of 
the outside vendor's charges.

Postage.  Postage is billed at actual cost.

Overnight Delivery.  Overnight delivery is billed at actual cost.

Local Messenger Service.  Local messenger service is billed at 44.5 cents per mile pursuant 
to Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.  Should the State increase the mileage allowance specified in 
Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, Kutak Rock shall, without further action, be entitled to 
reimbursement at the increased rate.

Computerized Legal Research. Charges for computerized legal research are billed at an 
amount approximating actual cost.  

Travel.  Travel (including air fare, rental cars, taxicabs, hotel, meals, tips, etc.) is billed at 
actual cost.  Where air travel is required, coach class is used wherever feasible.  Out-of-town 
mileage is billed at 44.5 cents per mile pursuant to Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.  Should the 
State increase the mileage allowance specified in Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, Kutak Rock
shall, without further action, be entitled to reimbursement at the increased rate.  Reasonable travel-
related expenses for meals, lodging, gratuities, taxi fares, tolls, and parking fees shall also be 
reimbursed.

Consultants.  Unless prior arrangements are made, consultants are ordinarily employed 
directly by the client.  Where consulting or testifying experts are employed by the firm, their 
charges are passed through with no mark-up.  The client is responsible for notifying the firm of 
any particular billing arrangements or procedures which the client requires of the consulting or 
testifying experts.

Other Expenses.  Other outside expenses, such as court reporters, agency copies,
conference calls, etc. are billed at actual cost.

Page 33


	Veranda Community Development District - June 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Assessment Roll

	Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Approval of District Counsel New Status with Kutak Rock LLP




